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UNITED STATES DISTIRCT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

CHROME HEARTS LLC
Plaintiff,
V.
GUESS?, INC.
Defendant. 1N 067001

COMPLAINT |

Plaintiff, Chrome Hearts LLC, by its attorneys, as and for its complaint, alleges

upon information and belief:

THE PARTIES

1. Plaintiff Chrome Hearts LL.C ("Chrome Hearts") is a limited liability company
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, with an office and place of business
at 915 N. Mansfield, Los Angeles, California 90038.

2 (a). Upon information and belief, defendant Guess?, Inc. is a California
corporation with a principal place of business at 1444 S. Alameda Street, Los Angeles, California
90021; is transacting and doing business within this judicial district and has committed the acts
complained of herein within this judicial district. Guess?, Inc. is subject to the jurisdiction of this
Court pursuant to the laws of this State and Rule 4 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.

Defendant Guess?, Inc. is hereinafter referred to as "Defendant".
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JURISDICTION

3. The first claim herein arises under the Copyright Laws of the United States, 17
U.S.C. §101 ef seq., the second claim herein arises under the Federal Trademark Act of 1946, 15
U.S.C. §1051 et seq. and, accordingly, subject matter jurisdiction for these claims is conferred on
this Court by virtue of 17 U.S.C. §501 ef seq. and 15 U.S.C. §1121, as well as 28 U.S.C. §1338 (a).

4. The third claim herein arisés under the law of unfair competition and the statutes
of the State of New York and is a claim joined with substantial and related claims under the
Trademark Laws of the United States and, accordingly, subject matter jurisdiction for the fourth
claim is conferred on this Court by virtue of 38 U.S.C. §1338 (b) and the doctrine of pendent
jurisdiction.

5. Venue is founded on 28 U.S.C. §1391 (b) and (c) and §1400 (a).

COMMON ALLEGATIONS

6. Chrome Hearts has been designing, manufacturing and selling artistically styled
leather goods, apparel, jewelry and accessories since early 1989.

7. The products, and/or their packaging of all Chrome Hearts goods all bear the
trademark CHROME HEARTS.

8. Chrome Hearts sells a wide variety of quality artistic products, including leather
pants, leather jackets, leather vests, sterling silver jewelry, including necklaces, bracelets, rings and
wallet chains, belt buckles and a wide collection of other products, including its recent line of
custom, one-of-a-kind furniture.

9. Chrome Hearts pioneered the idea of combining the look of rugged motorcycle
looking apparel with fashion attire to make fashion apparel and accessories. All of Chrome Hearts'
leather products are adorned with sterling silver hardware, including all of the buttons and

ornamental pieces. Chrome Hearts further pioneered the look of suede inlay designs in connection
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with leather clothing. Once thought of as only a look for outlaw motorcyclists, Chrome Hearts has
created a fashion niche that is now coveted in the upper most fashion circles.

10. Entertainers, such as Cher, Billy Idol, Aerosmith, Lenny Kravitz, Guns N’
Roses, Seal, Madonna, Keith Richards, Danny Glover, Sting, Gloria Estefan, Christy Turlington,
Naomi Campbell and Sharon Stone can all be seen in Chrome Hearts' fashions. Chrome Hearts
products are sold in the exclusive CHROME HEARTS stores throughout the world and in select
specialty stores, such as Browns of London and the United Arrows and Intellectual Galleries
boutiques in Japan.

11. In 1993, the Council of Fashion Designers of America ("CFDA") presented
plaintiff Chrome Hearts with an unsolicited award as designer of the year for its innovated
accessories and jewelry designs.

12. All Chrome Hearts products are hand made in Los Angeles by Chrome Hearts'
craftsmen. The level of expert workmanship exercised by these individuals is superior and
conforms with the strict standards established by Chrome Hearts.

13. Works designed by Chrome Hearts have been praised and recognized in
numerous articles appearing in both trade publications and publications directed to the general
public around the world, including articles in the United States, Germany, Japan and France. These
articles have acclaimed the high artistry, fashion and style of Chrome Hearts' designs and the
uniqueness of the designs.

14. Since 1991, Chrome Hearts' products have generated sales at retail of over
Three Hundred Fifty Million Dollars ($350,000,000).

15. Plaintiff Chrome Hearts is the owner of U.S. Registration No. 1,665,791 for the
CHROME HEARTS mark in International Classes 14, 18, 25 and 26; U.S. Registration No.
2,216,570 for the CHROME HEARTS plus the Scroll Design mark in International Class 14;
U.S. Registration No. 2,216,575 for the CHROME HEARTS plus the Horseshoe Design mark in
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International Class 25; U.S. Registration No. 2,118,026 for the CHROME HEARTS plus the
Scroll Design mark in International Classes 18 and 25; U.S. Registration No. 2,214,642 for the
CHROME HEARTS plus the Dagger Design mark in International Class 18 and U.S.
Registration No. 2,214,641 for the CHROME HEARTS plus the Dagger Design mark in
International Class 25 (collectively referred to herein as the "Chrome Hearts Mark"). Chrome
Hearts is entitled to the exclusive use and benefit of all of its Registrations.

16. The Chrome Hearts Mark has come to identify, in the United States and
throughout the world, high quality leather fashions, jewelry and accessories designed and
manufactured by Chrome Hearts.

17. Among many other copyright registrations, Chrome Hearts is the owner of
Copyright Registration No. 705-234 for the Classic Oval Design belt buckle (hereinafter the
“Copyrighted Work™). Annexed hereto and identified as Exhibit I is a copy of the Registration for
the Copyrighted Work. Also annexed hereto and identified as Exhibit 2 is a photograph of the
Copyrighted Work.

18. Chrome Hearts has duly complied in all respects with the provisions of Title 17
of the United States Code, and has secured the rights and privileges accorded to the work protected

by the copyright laws.

Defendant's Infringing Activities

CoPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT UNDER 17 U.S.C. §101 ET SEQ.

19. As the owner of the Copyrighted Work, plaintiff Chrome Hearts is entitled to
exclusively use this design without the unauthorized use by third parties. Given the widespread
popularity of the Chrome Hearts designs, Defendant had access to the work and upon information
and belief Defendant has knowingly infringed upon Chrome Hearts' copyrighted belt buckle design

by manufacturing, distributing and selling piratical copies of the buckle through its on line store at
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www.guess.com and retail stores nationwide to the public in violation of 17 U.S.C. §501.

20. Upon information and belief, Defendant has intentionally, knowingly and
willfully copied Chrome Hearts' Copyrighted Work to benefit from the widespread customer
recognition and acceptance of the Chrome Hearts' designs and to capitalize upon the market created
by plaintiff Chrome Hearts for its designs. Defendant has manufactured and sold its infringing
copies to various customers throughout the United States, including within this judicial district.
Annexed hereto and identified as Exhibit 3 is a photograph of Defendant’s infringing belt buckle as
it appears and is offered for sale on Defendant’s website.

21. Upon information and belief, the aforesaid infringement by Defendant of
plaintiff Chrome Hearts' Copyrighted Work was and continues to be with the knowledge that such
design is copyrighted and the Defendant, in doing the acts complained of herein, has willfully
infringed upon Chrome Hearts' rights under the Copyright Laws of the United States, Title 17
U.S.C. §101, et seq.

22. Defendant's copy of Chrome Hearts’ Copyrighted Work is identical to plaintiff
Chrome Hearts' genuine Copyrighted Work. There can be no doubt that Chrome Hearts'
copyrighted design was employed to manufacture the molds used to make Defendant's piratical
copy.

23. Defendant's infringement of plaintiff Chrome Hearts' Copyrighted Work is to
the great and irreparable damage of plaintiff, and plaintiff Chrome Hearts is informed and believes,
as indicated, that Defendant will continue such infringement unless enjoined by this Court.

24. Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law and has suffered irreparable damage as
a result of Defendant's acts as aforesaid in an amount thus far not determined, but believed to be in

excess of Seven Hundred Thousand Dollars ($700,000).
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FEDERAL UNFAIR COMPETITION

25. Plaintiff Chrome Hearts repeats and realleges every allegation contained
paragraphs 1 through 16, 20, 22 and 23 as though fully set forth herein.

26. This claim arises under the provision of the Trademark Act of 1946, 15 U.S.C.
1051, et seq., particularly under 15 U.S.C. 1125(a) and alleges the use in commerce of a false
designation of origin and false or misleading description of fact and false or misleading
representation of fact.

27. By reason of the marketing, celebrity status and unsolicited press coverage
generated for Chrome Hearts' products at the trade and consumer levels, and the unique quality of
the products comprising the entire line of plaintiff's, these products are recognized by the trade and
consumers as being products designed and hand crafted by plaintiff Chrome Hearts.

28. Chrome Hearts' products have become widely known among purchasers as
articles that are designed and manufactured by plaintiff. These products are known to be quality
items, with unique designs, made with the highest quality materials, and embodying expert
craftsmanship.

29. The goodwill of the plaintiff Chrome Hearts and the favorable reputation
residing in Chrome Hearts' products is a valuable asset belonging to plaintiff.

30. Defendant, with knowledge of the widespread recognition of Chrome Hearts'
products among the relevant segment of the market and with the specific intent to exploit that
recognition, has undertaken to make and sell piratical copies of plaintiff’s Copyrighted Work. It is
Defendant's intention to have their ultimate purchasers believe that Defendant's copies are made by
plaintiff Chrome Hearts and that persons who see Defendant's products being worn by Defendant's
ultimate purchasers believe that the copies emanate from plaintiff Chrome Hearts.

31. By reason of Defendant's sale of copies of the Copyrighted Work, the public has

been and is being mislead as to the nature and quality of goods being sold by Defendant, in
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violation of Section 43(a) of the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1051.

32. By reason of the foregoing, Defendant has used in commerce, on or in
connection with the goods and/or services, a false designation of origin, a false or misleading
description of fact or false or misleading representation of fact, including words, terms, names,
devices and symbols or a combination thereof which is likely to cause confusion, or mistake, or to
deceive as to the affiliation, connection, or association of such Defendant with plaintifft Chrome
Hearts or as to the origin, sponsorship, or approval of Defendant's products, services or commercial
activities by plaintiff with full knowledge of the falsity of such designations of origin or such
descriptions or representations, all to the detriment of plaintiff Chrome Hearts.

33. Plaintiff Chrome Hearts has no adequate remedy at law and has suffered
irreparable damage as a result of Defendant's acts as aforesaid in an amount thus far not determined,

but believed to be in excess of Seven Hundred Thousand Dollars ($700,000).

COMMON LAW UNFAIR COMPETITION

34. As a complete and third ground for relief, plaintiff Chrome Hearts hereby
charges Defendant with common law unfair competition under the laws of the State of New York,
and hereby realleges and reasserts all of the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through 16, 20,
22,23 and 25 through 33 hereof as though fully set forth herein.

35. Defendant’s manufacturing, distribution and sale of their infringing products
incorporating the distinctive designs of plaintiff Chrome Hearts' products is likely to cause
confusion between such products and the goods sold by plaintiff Chrome Hearts, thus constituting
an infringement of plaintiff's valuable common law rights.

36. Upon information and belief, Defendant is "palming off" its infringing products
as the high quality merchandise of plaintiff Chrome Hearts, and is knowingly enabling others to do

the same and is thus deliberately and knowingly misappropriating and diverting plaintiff's valuable
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proprietary rights and goodwill, and the reputation symbolized thereby, thereby unfairly competing
with plaintiff.

37. Upon information and belief, Defendant's unfair competition has caused and, if
allowed to continue, will continue to cause sales of plaintiff's products to be lost and/or diverted to
Defendant. Further, Defendant’s unfair competition has caused substantial and irreparable damage
and injury to plaintiff and in particular to its valuable goodwill and reputation, and unless enjoined
by this Court, will continue to cause substantial and irreparable damage and injury to plaintiff.

38. Plaintiff has no adequate remedy at law and has suffered irreparable damage as
a result of Defendant's acts as aforesaid in an amount thus far not determined, but believed to be in

excess of Seven Hundred Thousand Dollars ($700,000).

WHEREFORE, plaintiff demands:

A. that Defendant, its officers, agents, employees, attorneys and all persons
acting in concert, participation or combination with Defendant, be preliminarily and permanently
enjoined from infringing upon plaintiff's Copyrighted Work or any copyrighted design owned by
plaintiff and from manufacturing, promoting, advertising and selling any product substantially
similar to the copyrighted work of plaintiff, or any work substantially similar to the proprietary
designs of plaintiff;

B. that Defendant, its officers, agents, employees, attorneys and all persons
acting in concert, participation or combination with Defendant, be preliminary and permanently
enjoined from competing unfairly with plaintiff, from falsely representing and falsely designating
the origin of Defendant's goods, from diluting the distinctive quality of plaintiff's trademark and
from engaging in false advertising;

C. that Defendant be required to pay to plaintiff Chrome Hearts damages in a

sum to be determined at trial and to account for all gains, profits and advantages derived by
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Defendant by the sale or advertisement of the Copyrighted Work or any work confusingly similar
thereto; represented or advertised by Defendant to be a genuine Chrome Hearts product or its
equivalent;

D. that the piratical copies of Plaintiff’s belt buckle be recalled from all of
Defendant’s retain and on line stores and surrendered to Plaintiff for destruction;

E. that plaintiff be awarded statutory damages by reason of the infringement
of plaintiff’s Copyrighted Work;

F. that plaintiff be awarded treble damages, punitive damages, reasonable
attorneys fees and the costs and disbursements of this action;

G. that plaintiff be granted an award of punitive damages in view of the
willful and malicious nature of Defendant’s tortious acts; and,

H. that plaintiff have such other and further relief as the Court deems just and

equitable.

Dated: New York, New York
June 6, 2007

Respectfully submitted,

TUCKER & LATIFI, LLP
Attorneys for Plaintiff
160 East 84" Street
New York, NY 10028
(212) 472-6262

%chineh Latiﬁ)é(ﬁ 4828)
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Join Our Email | My Wish List | My Account . Shopping Bag ©

WOWER NER AGCRHIEGIER  SMEER m

Gothic Cross Belt

A boid addition to your accessories wardrobe. Distressed
genuins leather belt. Adjsutabie silver buckia with a filligree
gothic cross.

» 1 1/2" panei
» Domestic and/or imported
35814

Click Swatch To View Color

Color BLACK i

Size 34 M Siza Chart

Prica: $40.00
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Belt Buckle
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